
Special Adults, Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date Tuesday 24 May 2016
Time 9.30 am
Venue Council Chamber, County Hall, Durham

Business

Part A

Items during which the Press and Public are welcome to attend. Members of 
the Public can ask questions with the Chairman's agreement.

1. Apologies for absence  
2. Substitute Members  
3. Declarations of Interest, if any  
4. Any Items from Co-opted Members or Interested Parties  
5. Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group - 

Review of Urgent Care Services  - Joint Report of the Assistant Chief 
Executive, Durham County Council and the Chief Clinical Officer, Durham 
Dales, Easington and Sedgefield CCG  (Pages 1 - 50)

6. County Durham and Darlington NHS Foundation Trust Quality Account 
2015/16 - Verbal report of the Principal Overview and Scrutiny Officer, 
Assistant Chief Executive's Service  

7. Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting, is of 
sufficient urgency to warrant consideration  

Colette Longbottom
Head of Legal and Democratic Services

  County Hall
  Durham
  16 May 2016



To: The Members of the Adults, Wellbeing and Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee:

Councillor J Robinson (Chairman)
Councillor S Forster (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors J Armstrong, R Bell, P Brookes, J Chaplow, P Crathorne, M Davinson, 
K Hopper, E Huntington, P Lawton, H Liddle, J Lindsay, O Milburn, M Nicholls, 
L Pounder, A Savory, W Stelling, P Stradling and O Temple

Co-opted Members:

Mrs B Carr and Mrs R Hassoon

Co-opted Employees/Officers: 

Dr L Murthy, Healthwatch

Contact: Jackie Graham Tel: 03000 269704



Special Adults Wellbeing and Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

24 May 2016

Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield 
Clinical Commissioning Group (DDES 
CCG) – Consultation in respect of a 
proposed review of Urgent Care Services

Joint Report of Lorraine O’Donnell, Assistant Chief Executive, 
Durham County Council and Stewart Findlay, Chief Clinical Officer, 
Durham Dales Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning 
Group

Purpose of the Report
1 To provide members of the Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee with details of the three proposed options for Urgent Care 
Services in Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield (DDES) from April 2017 
and an opportunity to question representatives of DDES with a view to 
formulating a response to the consultation process .

Background
2 At its meeting held on 9 October 2015, the Adults Wellbeing and Health 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee considered a report and presentation 
detailing the development of the County Durham and Darlington Urgent Care 
Strategy 2015-20.

3 At the meeting the Committee endorsed the County Durham and Darlington 
Urgent Care Strategy 2015-20 and also asked for further detailed reports from 
the Systems Resilience Group and CCGs outlining detailed proposals for 
implementation of the strategy and any service changes and associated 
consultation and engagement plans to be brought back to future meetings of 
this Committee.

4 On the 19th January, DDES CCG presented an overview of the issues that 
were being considered as part of the review of services and received 
questions and comments from this Committee.  The presentation included:

 A summary of why DDES has reviewed its Urgent Care Services, 
providing a National and County Durham and Darlington context to this 
work;

 A definition of what Emergency and Urgent Care Services are;

 An explanation of the current service provision model for Urgent Care 
across the DDES locality including service profiles for the Bishop 
Auckland Urgent Care Centre; Peterlee Urgent Care Centre; Seaham 



Urgent Care Centre and the Healthworks Urgent Care Centre, 
Easington;

 Details of the engagement activity undertaken with patients and 
stakeholders to date and the key messages from this activity and how 
this information was being used to inform the development of proposed 
future models for how Urgent Care services might be provided.

 The models for the future provision of Urgent Care services within the 
DDES locality including timeframes for public consultation and 
engagement together with the engagement of the Adults Wellbeing and 
Health OSC in accordance with the statutory requirements.

5 It is also important to note that under Section 244 of the NHS Act 2006, local 
NHS bodies have a duty to consult local Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
on proposals for any substantial development of the health service or 
substantial variation in the provision in their areas. Scrutiny Committees are 
also required to consider the extent of consultation undertaken.

Proposed options for Urgent Care Service Delivery within the DDES CCG 
locality 

6 At a further meeting held on 1 March 2016, the Committee considered the 
proposed options for Urgent Care Services within the DDES CCG locality that 
were to be subject to statutory public consultation and engagement. Members 
also considered and commented upon DDES CCG’s proposed consultation, 
communications and engagement plans.

7 The formal consultation commenced on Monday 14 March 2016 and will 
conclude on Monday 6 June 2016.

8 The models for the future provision of Urgent Care services within the DDES 
are set out below:





9 Following the Committee’s meeting on 1 March 2016, the Chair wrote to 
Stewart Findlay, Chief Clinical Officer, DDES CCG setting out a range of 
issues and concerns raised by members in respect of the proposed 
consultation and engagement process. A copy of the letter is attached to this 
report (Appendix 2) and the CCG representatives have been asked to 
address those issues at today’s meeting.

10 A copy of the consultation document and an Urgent Care Consultation flyer 
are attached to this report (Appendices 3 and 4) for members’ information and 
consideration. Representatives of DDES CCG will be in attendance to give 
members a presentation on the key issues arising from the consultation 
process so far and what the various options mean in reality for the future of 
urgent care service provision across the DDES CCG locality. The 
presentation will also respond to those issues highlighted within Appendix 2

11 Members of the Adults Wellbeing and Health OSC will be able to question the 
CCG representatives on the service options and the consultation and 
engagement process and consultation documents. 

Next Steps

12 The consultation exercise will conclude on Monday 6 June 2016 and the 
feedback from the consultation will be collated in to a report which will be 
brought to a further special meeting of the Adults Wellbeing and Health OSC 
scheduled for Thursday 1 September 2016. This will allow the Committee to 
consider all of the consultation feedback, determine whether the consultation 
and engagement process has met the statutory requirements of section 244 
of the NHS Act 2006 and agree any final representations it wishes to make to 
DDES CCG prior to its Governing body agreeing its preferred option.



Recommendation

13 The Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee is 
recommended to:-

1.  receive this report;

2.  note and comment on the documents attached including the 
consultation and engagement process, the consultation materials and 
the consultation feedback received to date;

3.  agree to hold an additional special meeting of the AWH OSC on 1st 
September 2016 to enable the Committee to consider all of the 
consultation feedback, determine whether the consultation and 
engagement process has met the statutory requirements of section 
244 of the NHS Act 2006 and agree any final representations it wishes 
to make to DDES CCG prior to its Governing body agreeing its 
preferred option

Background papers

DDES CCG Urgent Care Strategy and service review reports to and minutes of the 
Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees held on 9 October 
2015, 19 January 2016 and 1 March 2016

Contact: Stephen Gwillym, Principal Overview and Scrutiny Officer
E-Mail: stephen.gwillym@durham.gov.uk Tel: 03000 268140
Contact:Sarah Burns, Director of Commissioning, Durham Dales, 
Easington and Sedgefield CCG   Tel: 0191 371 3234



Appendix 1:  Implications

Finance - None

Staffing - None

Risk - None

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty – As part of the consultation 
approach, the CCG will report upon how it is ensuring that specific engagement 
activities is being undertaken with protected groups.  

Accommodation - None

Crime and Disorder - None

Human Rights - None

Consultation – The supporting documents set out how statutory consultation and 
engagement is being undertaken in respect of the proposed future models of Urgent 
Care Services.

Procurement - None

Disability Issues - None

Legal Implications – None 



Members
Durham County Council, County Hall, Durham  DH1 5UQ
Main Telephone (03000) 260000   Minicom (0191) 383 3802   Text 07786 02 69 56 

Website: www.durham.gov.uk

Contact: Cllr John Robinson
Direct Tel:  03000 268140
e-mail:
Your ref:
Our ref:

Dr. Stewart Findlay,
Chief Clinical Officer,
Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield CCG,
Sedgefield Community Hospital, 
Salters Lane,
Sedgefield, 
County Durham.
TS21 3EE 

9 March 2016

Dear Stewart, 

Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group – 
Review of Urgent Care Services

At a meeting of Durham County Council’s Adults Wellbeing and Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 1 March 2016, members considered a 
cover report from the Assistant Chief Executive and a series of papers from 
DDES CCG including:-

 A letter from Sarah Burns, Head of Commissioning , DDES CCG in 
response to the letter from Cllr John Robinson, Chair of the AWHOSC 
regarding a series of issues raised at the Committee’s meeting on 19 
January 2016

 Draft copies of a long and short consultation document
 The draft communications and engagement plan
 An options appraisal briefing paper setting out the process through which 

the DDESS CCG arrived at the options shortlisted for consultation.

The CCG provided information around the availability of GP appointments for 
those patients who had presented to the existing Walk-in Centres at Bishop 
Auckland Hospital; Peterlee Community Hospital, Seaham Health Centre and 
the Healthworks Centre, Easington. In discussing the proposed options for 
consultation and the communications and engagement plans the Committee 
made the following observations and comments which were to be relayed back 
to the CCG:-

APPENDIX 2



The Urgent Care Service and proposed options

1) How will the recent announcement by the Government that there is to be a 
£170m reduction in pharmacy funding impact upon the health economy 
within the DDES Locality and patients’ ability to identify and access the 
appropriate services including self-care and pharmacy advice?

2) There remains amongst elected members and the public, concern at the 
GP capacity to support the proposed models being consulted upon. This is 
based upon information both regionally and locally around the issues of 
recruitment and retention of GPs.

3) There appears to be a need to improve GP accessibility and to increase 
the information about services available through GPs and what they are 
including the potential location of extended GPs and GP Hubs.

4) Members are concerned that GPs aren’t filling their appointments.

5) Access to services and transport options available to those patients who 
need them, particularly the frail and elderly, including those with Long 
Term Conditions need to be addressed and assurances that these are 
robust.

The Consultation and Engagement Plans and associated publications

6) The CCG needs to be clear within the documentation about what is meant 
by “extended GP services”, GP Hubs and Minor Injuries Unit. There needs 
to be clarity about what services will be available and, in the case of 
extended GP services, whether this means additional services as well as 
longer opening times.

7) Whilst appreciating that there needs to be a consistent approach to the 
consultation and engagement exercise, there also needs to be an 
acknowledgement that some degree of targeting should be adopted in 
each of the public consultation events meeting explaining what each of the 
options might mean for the people of those localities.

8) How exactly will local people be able to influence where extended GP 
practices and GP Hubs will be located?

9) Members welcomed the proposal to utilise as many engagement 
opportunities and methods as possible including targeting hard to reach 
groups; Patient Reference Groups; Healthwatch; and also ensuring that 
individual GP practices advertise the consultation and have the 



consultation material available to patients and that GPs themselves 
actively promote the consultation via the appointments process.

10) The CCG should consider utilising the County Council’s AAPs and 
Careline service to promote the consultation and engagement process.

11) Regarding the proposed locations for the Public Consultation and 
engagement meetings, members suggested that these be:-

Easington Locality

Seaham, Peterlee and Easington

Sedgefield Locality

Sedgefield, Spennymoor and Newton Aycliffe

Durham Dales Locality

Barnard Castle, Bishop Auckland and Stanhope (with possibly Middleton-
in-Teesdale and Crook also given the rurality of the area) 

To conclude, the Adults, Wellbeing and Health OSC welcomed the proposed 
consultation and engagement process for the DDES CCG Review of Urgent 
Care Service, subject to the comments above and also agreed that a special 
meeting of the Committee will be held within the consultation period to allow the 
members an opportunity to receive evidence that allows them to formulate a 
response as part of the consultation process.

Yours sincerely,

Cllr John Robinson
Chair of the Adults, Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Durham County Council





 

 
 
 

Public consultation 
 

On the future of urgent care services in Durham Dales, 
Easington and Sedgefield 

 
14th March 2016 – 6th June 2016 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Getting Care 
Right For You 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NHS 111 Pharmacy Local GPs Extended 

GP opening 

times (Hub) 

 

Walk-in 
centres 

 

Minor 
injuries 
units 

 

Urgent 
care 
centres 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

www.gettingcarerightforyou.org.uk 

http://www.gettingcarerightforyou.org.uk/
stephen.gwillym
Text Box
APPENDIX 3



Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group 

2 Working together for excellent health for the local communities 

 

 

 
 
 

Contents 
 

Glossary of terms? p. 3 
 

Who are we? p. 5 
 

1. Getting Care Right For You p. 6 
 

2. What is urgent care? p. 9 
 

3. Why urgent care services need to change p. 12 
 

4. What you have already told us p. 15 
 

5. How we developed our options for improvement p. 18 
 

6. How you can have your say p. 24 
 

7. How we will use your feedback p. 25 
 

8. Frequently asked questions p. 26 
 

9. Potential location of GP hubs p. 29 
 

10. Public consultation questionnaire p. 31 
 

11. Do you need more help? p. 33 
 
 
 

Glossary of Terms 
 
 

Clinical 

Commissioning 

Group (CCG) 

Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) are groups of GPs 

responsible for designing hospital and community based health 

services in the local areas for which they are responsible. 

 
Commissioning involves deciding what services are needed and 

ensuring that they are provided. CCGs are overseen by NHS 

England, which holds responsibility for commissioning primary 

care services such as GP and dental services, as well as some 

specialised hospital services. 

CCGs also include other health professionals such as nurses. 

CCGs commission or buy a number of services, including: 

• most planned hospital care 
 

• rehabilitative care 
 

• urgent and emergency care (including out-of-hours) 
 

• most community health services 
 

• mental health and learning disability services 



Getting Care Right For You 

3 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

Durham Dales 

Easington and 

Sedgefield 

Clinical 

Commissioning 

Group (DDES 

CCG) 

 

Durham Dales Easington and Sedgefield (DDES) CCG was 

established in October 2011 and authorised as a statutory body 

in February 2013. 

The CCG is made up of 40 member GP practices. It covers a 

total population of around 289,670 over a large and diverse 

geographical area. 

The CCG comprises three localities within County Durham: 
 

• Durham Dales 

• Easington 

• Sedgefield 
 

These localities have worked closely together as commissioners of 

local healthcare services for many years. 

 

Emergency Care 
 

Immediate or life threatening conditions, or serious injuries or 

illnesses. 

 

Equality  Impact 

Assessment 

 

It is a tool for identifying the potential impact of policies, services 

and functions on patients and staff. 

 

Minor Injury Unit 
 

A minor injury unit is a department that treats non-serious 

injuries as an alternative to attending an Accident and Emergency 

department. 

 

NHS England 
 

NHS England is an independent body, at arm’s length to the 

government. Its main role is to improve health outcomes for 

people in England. In particular, it provides national leadership 

for improving outcomes and driving up the quality of care. It 

also oversees the operation of CCGs, allocates resources and 

commissions primary care and specialist services. 

 

North of England 

Commissioning 

Support (NECS) 

 

It provides specialised support to CCGs across the North East, 

Cumbria, North Yorkshire and Humber. 

 

Patient  Reference 

Groups (PRGs) 

 

There are three PRGs in DDES, one in each locality – Durham 

Dales, Easington and Sedgefield. PRGs represent vital sources of 

information and knowledge for the CCG as it is one of the driving 

forces behind our commitment to ensuring that we engage all 

our patients in the decisions we make. 

 

System Resilience 

Group (SRG) 

 

It is a forum where all partners across the health and social care 

system come together to undertake the regular planning of 

urgent and emergency care delivery. 

 

Urgent Care 
 

The range of health services available to people who need urgent 

advice, diagnosis and treatment quickly and unexpectedly for 

needs that are not considered life threatening. 

 

Vanguard 
 

A programme of work for new models of care. The North East 

and Cumbria were selected as a Vanguard site. 



Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group 

4 Working together for excellent health for the local communities 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

Walk-In Centre 
 

Walk-In centres were opened with the aim to improve patient 

access to primary care, and to ensure that the system was more 

responsive to patients’ busy lifestyles by offering them more 

choice. The centres deliver primary care services differently from 

the traditional way in which GPs provide primary care services  

to patients who register with their practice. The walk-in centres 

allow patients to access care from a GP or a nurse with no need 

to register or to pre-book an appointment. The centres are open 

for longer hours than the typical GP practice, including after 

normal working hours and at weekends. 

 

Member Practices 
 

Our 40 GP practice make up DDES CCG. They commission (or 

buy) local health services for people in DDES. 

 

Summary Care 

Record 

 

Summary Care Records provide healthcare staff treating patients 

in an emergency or out-of-hours setting with faster access to key 

clinical  information. 

 

Conflict of 

interest 

 

A conflict of interest is a situation in which a person or an 

organisation is involved in multiple interests, financial interest, or 

otherwise, one of which could possibly corrupt the motivation of 

the individual or organisation. 

 

Better Health 

Programme 

 

The Better Health Programme is focussed on how your local 

services can provide the best care for the future. Doctors, nurses 

and other health care professionals are looking at how we 

provide care across Darlington, Durham and Tees. 

 

NHS Five Year 

Forward View 

 

The Five Year Forward View was produced as a planning 

document by NHS England in October 2014. 

 

GP Federation 
 

A group of practices working together in a single group with 

centralised control. 

 

Locally Enhanced 

Service 

 

Enhanced services are currently commissioned through each  

of the primary medical care contracting vehicles They currently 

comprise: 
 

Local enhanced services (LESs) – schemes agreed by CCGs in 

response to local needs and priorities, sometimes adopting 

national service specifications. 

 

Council of 

Members 

 

A group of GP practices working together as a membership. This 

is an executive body whose members are equal in power and 

authority. 

 

Governing Body 
 

A group of people who formulate the policy and direct the affairs 

of the CCG with the managers, especially on a voluntary or part- 

time basis. The Governing Body eliminate the issues of potential 

conflicts of interest as a clinical led organisation. 

 

DDES Wide 

Management 

Meeting 

 

A governance meeting of DDES CCG that is represented by a GP 

lead and a practice manager from each of the 40 practices. This 

is a decision making meeting that informs the CCG direction of 

travel. 



Getting Care Right For You 

5 

 

 

 
 
 

Who are we? 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Easington 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Durham Dales 

Sedgefield 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Durham Dales, Easington 

and Sedgefield CCG 
 

 
 

We are NHS Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical 

Commissioning Group (DDES CCG). We comprise of 40 GP practices 
and cover a population of around 289,670 patients. We are a very big 

organisation, made up of three localities called Durham Dales, Easington and 

Sedgefield. 
 

What does this all mean? 
 

Clinical: we are 

made up of GPs, nurses 

and other health 

professionals who know 

your health needs and 

how to meet them. 

 

Commissioning: 
we plan and buy health 

services that you need 

and use on your behalf. 

Group: we are 

an organisation 

working on behalf of 

our 40 GP practices 

accountable to you, 

the taxpayers. 



Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group 

6 Working together for excellent health for the local communities 

 

 

 
 
 

1. 

Getting Care 
Right For You 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Welcome and Introduction 
 

Welcome to our public consultation about urgent care services in Durham 

Dales, Easington and Sedgefield. We would like to thank you for taking 

the time to read this consultation document, which provides you with an 

opportunity to have your say about potential changes to the way we deliver 

urgent care services. 
 

By urgent care we mean ‘a range of health services available to 

people who need urgent advice, diagnosis and treatment quickly and 

unexpectedly for needs that are not considered life-threatening’. 

Excluded from this is emergency care, which is defined as ‘immediate or life 

threatening conditions, or serious injuries and illnesses’. Examples of urgent 

care services are: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NHS 111 Pharmacy Local GPs Extended Walk-in Minor Urgent 

 GP opening centres injuries care 

times (Hub)  units centres 

 
 

 
The aim of the proposed changes is to commission (buy) simple, 

urgent care services. In particular we want to provide you with 

prompt treatment or advice for your urgent care needs ensuring 

that we make best use of medical services and workforce and 

that we don’t add unnecessary pressure on A&E. 



Getting Care Right For You 

7 

 

 

 
 
 
 

For the purposes of this consultation, we are seeking your views 

on the following services: 
 

• Day time urgent care (8am-8pm) 
 

• Minor injury services 
 

These are currently provided from: 
 

• Easington Healthworks 
 

• Seaham Primary Care Centre 
 

• Peterlee Urgent Care Centre 
 

• Bishop Auckland Urgent Care Centre 
 
 

In our pre-engagement, you have told us that you want services to remain 

local and, where possible, delivered from your GP Practice. 
 

Our consultation will focus on options that will retain services locally. 
 

If you are poorly during the day we propose that you would be treated by 

your GP practice or a group of GP practices working together. 
 

If you have a minor injury we propose that services should remain as they are 

now, but we want you to advise on opening hours. 

GP services outside of normal surgery opening times will remain unchanged. 

We are also proposing new developments to complement future urgent care 

arrangements : 
 

• Extended GP services 6pm-8pm weekdays and Saturday and Sunday 
 

• Enhanced GP services providing additional availability of same day urgent 

appointments 
 

• Practices working together from common single sites to serve larger 

populations for these extended and enhanced GP services for some 

populations in what will be known as Hubs. 
 

• Encouraging use of 111 triage to co-ordinate access to appropriate care 
 

Being the commissioner of primary care services since April 2015 has 

enabled the CCG to develop a joined up model of care with the ability to 

make changes to GP services to better meet the needs of our population. 

Primary care has developed rapidly over the last two years with practices 

working increasingly together, what we call federating and we have seen real 

improvement and improved primary care access for our population by already 

running GP extended weekend opening on a Saturday and bank holidays, to 

ease the pressure on our urgent and emergency services. 



Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group 

8 Working together for excellent health for the local communities 

 

 

 
 
 

We believe that there is a strong case for changing existing services by 

improving both clinical services and offering better value for money. 

By doing this we will we ensure that our services meet the current needs of 

our population in addition to being affordable for the future. 
 

DDES CCG knows that changes in demographics, particularly a growing 

elderly population, advances in medical technology meaning people live 

longer and 50% of our population have at least one long-term condition, 

this is driving up demand and the overall cost of healthcare. This growth 

in demand is taking place at a time of austerity and puts pressure on NHS 

funding. Despite an overall increase in funding the NHS will have less funding 

than it had in previous years as the growth in funding will be outstripped by 

the rise in healthcare costs. For DDES CCG this means that we must spend 

our money wisely to ensure that the best outcomes are achieved for the 

DDES CCG population as a whole. 
 
 

We began a review of urgent care services in 2014. In January 2014 

to December 2015 we asked local people about their experience of 

using services and for their views on how they could be improved. 

In summary, people told us that the current system is confusing and 

needs to be much simpler. This feedback has helped us to develop  

a range of options for the future. These options have also been 

informed by key national policy which directs us to further develop 

the NHS 111 telephone service and to also increase GP surgery 

opening hours to cover weekends and evenings. In order for us 

to make these improvements, we will need to change the way we 

deliver services. 
 

 
 
 

Now we are asking for your views on how these services can improve or  

be developed. Therefore, the options we have set out in this document will 

include the full range of our proposals to include all of the above so that you 

can see how they join together to deliver better services from April 2017. The 

views of local people are extremely important to us. No decision will be made 

until the end of the consultation. 
 

This document summarises our proposals and informs you about the many 

ways in which you can have your say. We look forward to hearing your views. 
 

 

 
 

Dr Jonathan Smith 

Chair 

Dr Stewart Findlay 

Chief Clinical Officer 



Getting Care Right For You 

9 

 

 

 
 
 

2. What is urgent care? 
 

 
 

‘Urgent care’ is defined as ‘the range of health services available to people 

who need urgent advice, diagnosis and treatment quickly and unexpectedly 

for needs that are not considered life threatening’. 
 

Excluded from this is ‘emergency care’ which is defined as ‘immediate or 

life threatening conditions, or serious injuries or illnesses’. These conditions 

or illnesses are usually dealt with by 999 calls and Accident & Emergency 

departments. 
 

This is how urgent care services are currently delivered across DDES: 
 

Self-Care 
 

Around 80% of adults can manage common illnesses like coughs and colds 

using medicines that can be easily bought in shops or at the local pharmacy. 
 

Pharmacy 
 

Local pharmacies prepare and supply prescription and non-prescription 

treatments and offer advice and support to people to manage long-term 

conditions. Most also provide contraception and flu vaccination services. 
 

NHS 111 
 

NHS 111 is an easy to remember national NHS non-emergency Freephone 

number that has been in place across County Durham since April 2011. 

Available 24 hours a day, 365 days a year, users speak to a highly trained 

advisor, supported by healthcare professionals. Advisors ask questions to 

assess symptoms and immediately direct users to the best medical care. 
 

GP Practice (usually open 8am to 6pm) 
 

We have 40 GP practices providing NHS services. They are the only service  

to hold a complete patient health record. They work closely with community 

health and social care teams. 
 

Minor injuries 
 

Minor injuries units offer assessment and treatment for minor injuries such as 

sprains and strains. 



Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group 

10 Working together for excellent health for the local communities 

 

 

 
 
 

Emergency Dental Services 
 

DDES patients have provision to secure urgent dental treatment within 

Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield. When a patient has a severe dental 

pain, advice should be secured through your local Dental Practice. Where  

you do not have a dentist you can secure advice, support and information 

regarding how to access urgent dental care services from within the DDES 

area by contacting NHS 111. 
 

Ambulance Service 
 

The ambulance service receives and responds to 999 calls, assesses patient 

need and provides an appropriate response. This includes the ‘hear and treat’ 

service where trained staff provide advice and guidance over the telephone. 



Getting Care Right For You 

11 

 

 

 
 
 

The information below helps to understand what services we currently have, 

where and when they are currently available across County Durham. 
 

In Easington locality, the following services are available: 
 

• GP practices open 8am-6pm, Monday to Friday, plus extended opening in 

some practices, some evenings and additional weekend opening. 
 

• Urgent care centres at: 
 

– Seaham Primary Care Centre 8am-6pm, Monday to Friday 
 

– Peterlee Community Hospital 24/7 
 

• Minor injuries unit at Peterlee Community Hospital, 24/7 
 

• Walk In Service at Easington Healthworks 8am-8pm, 7 days a week 
 

• GP out-of-hours service at Peterlee Community Hospital 6pm-8am, 

Monday to Friday and 24 hours at weekends 
 

In Durham Dales locality, the following services are available: 
 

• GP practices open 8am-6pm, Monday to Friday, plus extended opening in 

some practices at evenings and additional weekend opening 
 

• Urgent care centre at Bishop Auckland Hospital (BAH), 24/7 
 

• Minor injuries unit at BAH, 24/7 
 

• GP out-of-hours service at BAH 6pm-8am, Monday to Friday and 24 hours 

at weekends 
 

In Sedgefield locality, the following services are available: 
 

• GP practices open 8am-6pm, Monday to Friday, plus extended opening in 

some practices, some evenings and additional weekend opening 
 

• Sedgefield locality is in the middle of the DDES area therefore has access 

to services located in Easington and Durham Dales, but does not have any 

other additional urgent care facilities of its own. 
 
 

In addition, NHS 111 is available to advise you of the best 

treatment, course of action or service to attend. 



Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group 

12 Working together for excellent health for the local communities 

 

 

 
 
 

3. Why urgent care services 

need to change 
 

 
Local NHS healthcare needs are increasing as people live longer lives. 

More and more people are using NHS services every year, increasing the 

pressure on an already overloaded system. 
 

We believe that urgent care services should: 
 

• Provide consistently high quality and safe care, 7 days per week 
 

• Be simple, ensuring the urgent care system works together rather than 

pulling apart 
 

• Provide the right care according to people’s needs 
 

• Acknowledge that prompt care is good care 
 

• Deliver care closer to home where appropriate and safe to do so 
 

• Be efficient and effective in delivery of care for patients 
 

Services are complex and confusing 
 

In line with the national position, general demand for health services in our 

area continues to grow. Urgent and Emergency Care Services in County 

Durham and Darlington have evolved in response to evidence-based practice 

and guidelines, along with relevant NHS policy changes. Over time this 

has resulted in the development of numerous services that can appear to 

the patient as unrelated, each with different names and access points and 

this has created a complicated system. Patients and health and social care 

professionals can find it difficult to navigate around these services. 
 
 

The CCG knows that the current range of urgent care and emergency 

services can be confusing for patients and that they are often unsure 

about where to go when ill or injured. This can result in people having 

to be transferred from one location to another before getting the 

treatment they need. This is inconvenient and frustrating for patients 

and can lead to poorer clinical outcomes. It is also costly as we have to 

pay each time a patient attends a service, and this increases waiting 

times when patients visit an inappropriate service. This can also be 

costly for the patient in car transport, public transport or taxis. 



Getting Care Right For You 

13 

 

 

 
 
 

The services also provide an element of risk as patients with emergency 

conditions are currently presenting at Walk In Centres and Urgent Care Centres 

with, for example, chest pains or young children with breathing difficulties that 

require emergency care. However, as the patient has presented at a ‘place of 

safety’ this often results in long delays for an ambulance and therefore, also 

takes up a lot of GP/Practitioner time in the Urgent Care Centres. 
 

Demand 
 

In DDES until the current year there has been a continued rise in demand 

for Urgent and Emergency Care across the whole system, from increasing 

attendances at Emergency Departments to increased demand on the GP In 

and Out of Hours Services. However, for DDES, when comparing activity for 

2013/14, 2014/15 and forecast activity for 2015/16 Urgent Care Centre/Walk 

In Centre activity is forecast to be 10% lower than the previous years. 

We think this is because we have commissioned the following services in 

Primary Care: 
 

• The CCG has supported and developed federated working amongst GP 

practices across DDES. This enables practices to collaborate and share 

resources and has enabled us to offer weekend opening to the whole 

DDES population for the last eighteen months. 
 

• The CCG has commissioned additional community services including 

Advanced Nurse Practitioners (ANPs) for the frail and vulnerable 

population that wrap around GP practices. These services provide 

additional resource to support some of the more complex patients both 

for patients at risk of admission to hospital or those that have been 

recently discharged from hospital. This is, in effect, an additional resource 

for GP practices which frees up or extends capacity across primary care. 
 

• Several of our GP practices are part of a new national pilot employing 

pharmacists. This supports more patients being seen for medication 

reviews and providing additional appointments for patients with long- 

term conditions, enabling our GP resource to focus on the more complex 

patients. 
 

Cost of urgent care is high 
 

The current cost of delivering the urgent care system in DDES is 

approximately £10.5m and whilst our proposals are not solely about cost 

savings, we want to ensure that we use our money much more effectively to 

the benefit of our local people, recognising the growing health care demand, 

an ageing population and the need to sustain services for the future. In order 

to deliver 7 day access to GP practices, as per national policy and public 

feedback, we cannot afford to duplicate services. 



Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group 

14 Working together for excellent health for the local communities 

 

 

 
 
 

Legal contractual requirements 
 

Contracts with our existing providers have expired and so we need to review 

the services being delivered to see if they are still meeting patients’ needs. 

We also need to make sure that they represent value for the taxpayers. 
 

National Policy 
 

In response to increasing pressure on the health care system, the government 

carried out a comprehensive review of the NHS urgent and emergency 

care system in England. The overall objective of the review was to consider 

how to improve services for patients across the spectrum of urgent and 

emergency care, and to identify potential solutions. It made a number of 

recommendations including working towards a 7 day NHS service. National 

policy requires us to deliver 7 day GP services by 2020. Clearly our proposals 

need to take this into account and build upon the work already being piloted 

by our local GPs to increase access over 7 days. 
 

In September 2015, NHS England published further direction for CCGs - 

‘Integrated Urgent Care Commissioning Standards’. This document describes 

improvements for the NHS 111 service that must be adopted by all CCGs. It 

outlines NHS England’s vision for urgent care which has also been taken into 

account when drawing up our proposals. This includes: 
 

• Access to a summary patient record 
 

• Increased telephone access to a range of clinical professionals working 

within the NHS 111 service 
 

• An expanded directory of services in order to signpost more people to 

appropriate support 
 

• The ability to book appointments into GP practices and other relevant 

services via the NHS 111 service 



Getting Care Right For You 

15 

 

 

 
 
 

4. What you have already 

told us 
 

 
Pre-Engagement has been undertaken with a range of stakeholders to 

better understand the services delivered and the needs and preferences of 

the population. This engagement helped us to: 
 

• Understand the experience of using current, local urgent care services 
 

• Understand how urgent care services could be improved 
 

The following groups of people were involved in a number of engagement 

events and activities in 2014: 
 

• Parents of young children (under five years) 
 

• People living with long term health issues 
 

• People with mental health issues 
 

• People in good health 
 

• Front-line staff in urgent care settings 

These events focused on: 

• Patients’ experience of urgent care services 
 

• How urgent care could be improved 

• How urgent care services could continue to meet the needs for the future 

Members of the public and front line staff said that urgent care centres were 

mainly used because people could not get an appointment to see their GP 

during the day. Front line staff added that during the day, the majority of 

patients attended urgent care centres with problems that could have been 

resolved at their GP practice, and that during the out of hours period urgent 

care services were used more appropriately. 



Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group 

16 Working together for excellent health for the local communities 

 

 

 
 
 

The conclusions from the engagement work were that people in DDES said: 
 
 

GP Appointments 
 

• The process for making GP appointments should be improved 
 

• The key message was that patients would prefer to see their own GP 
where possible and that they would like new and innovative ways of 
contacting their GP 

 
• Access needs to be improved to GP practices 

 
 
 

NHS 111 
 

• There needs to be more joined up thinking around triage (the process 
of determining the priority of patients’ treatments based on the 
severity of their condition) across urgent care centres, GP practices 
and NHS 111 

 
• NHS 111 needs to be joined-up to all services 



Getting Care Right For You 

17 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Self-Care 
 

• Would like to receive health education in the community to self-care 

and by receiving training would give them more confidence 
 
 
 

Urgent Care 
 

• Would like to have more knowledge and be educated, who to call, 

where to go when they have specific health needs or conditions. 

‘Being in the right place, at the right time, seeing the right person, 

who can support their needs’ 
 

• What matters to people and delivers a ‘great’ urgent care experience 

would be if services are 
 

– Welcoming 
 

– Supporting 
 

– Reassuring 
 

– Building confidence 
 

– Informing and educating people how to self-care 
 

– Listening and understanding 
 

• Having the ability to request medical tests for non-urgent needs 

should be considered 
 

• People use urgent care centres because they perceive their condition 

to be ‘in between GP and A&E’ 
 

• They attend Urgent Care Centres/Walk In Centres because they want 

immediate reassurance 
 

• They perceive they cannot get to see their GP soon enough 
 
 
 

Patient Information 
 

• There is a need for more joined-up thinking around 
 

– Access to clinical records 
 

– Accessing specialist advice (a second opinion) 



Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group 

18 Working together for excellent health for the local communities 

 

 

 
 
 

5. How we developed our 

options for improvement 
 

 
We started by developing a large number of potential scenarios that we 

thought might make urgent care services better. These were informed by  

the engagement activities that we described earlier in this document, as well 

as input from local doctors, the CCG and stakeholders such as our Local 

Authority and NHS England. 
 

An in-depth discussion around urgent care services took place at our GP 

Locality meetings in July and August 2015. These discussions included 

looking at Enhanced and Extended Primary Care services. Enhanced services 

would entail GP Practices seeing more patients during the day that require 

same day urgent access. Extended services means that GP Practices or a 

group of practices called Extended hours GP centres would offer additional 

appointments beyond 6pm on weekdays and weekends. Later in this 

document we want you to consider locations of these extended hours GP 

centres using your knowledge of the geography and transport links. 

The discussion included the GP Commissioning Leads (every practice has a 

lead GP that represents them) from each practice and the Patient Reference 

Group Chair (the group representing practice patient forums) for that locality. 

A follow up workshop took place in October 2015 with the CCG clinical 

leads for each locality and proposed new service models were considered. 

A summary of the discussion is below: 
 

• There are multiple services for patients to access in DDES, particularly 

during the day 
 

• There are peaks in demand for services (mid-morning and 4-8pm) 
 

• Patients would prefer to see their GP where possible 
 

• Appointments with GPs are available in a large proportion of cases where 

patients have attended Urgent Care Centre/Walk In Centre services 
 

• Services must be more closely linked and integrated 

(including NHS 111 services) 
 

• Patients perceive the Urgent Care Centres/Walk In Centres to be between 

A&E and GP services when this is not always the case 
 

• Patients want care closer to home 
 

In developing a forward plan for urgent care, DDES CCG developed scenarios 

about how services could be improved by utilising patients and health staff 

and other feedback along with all the information gathered through the 

engagement activities carried out in 2014 and 2015. 



Getting Care Right For You 

19 

 

 

 
 
 

The scenarios were assessed using best practice, national strategies and 

standards. Six scenarios were taken forward; these were then evaluated using 

the following factors as appraisal criteria: 
 

• Affordability – does it provide value for money and is it comparable in 

price to the rest of the country 
 

• Sustainability – that the service can provide appropriate qualified staff 

using the latest technology to remain fit for purpose into the future 
 

• Safety – to ensure that the service follows the latest clinical guidelines and 

that the staff are qualified at the right skill level 
 

• Access – to ensure that the services have sufficient capacity to access the 

right care in the right place at the right time 
 

Three scenarios met all the criteria and were taken forward as options for 

consultation. See page 21 onwards for full detail on the options. In summary: 

 

Option 1 Retain two minor injuries units for 12 hours per day, retain the number of out-of-hours 

services, extended GP opening times in hub arrangements, existing GP services to 

manage demand for minor ailments during the day 
 

 

Option 2 Retain two minor injuries units for 12 hours per day, retain the number of out-of-hours 

services, extended GP opening times in hub arrangements, enhanced GP services to 

manage demand for minor ailments during the day 
 

 

Option 3 Retain two minor injuries units for 24 hours per day, retain the number of out-of-hours 

services, extended GP opening times in hub arrangements, enhanced GP services to 

manage demand for minor ailments and urgent requests during the day 
 
 

The following scenarios were not taken forward as they did not meet the criteria: 
 

Scenario 1 - This model involves re-procuring the existing services in their current configuration and does 

not involve any change. 

Affordable Sustainable Safe Convenience of access for patients Overall rating 

No No Yes Yes Non-viable 

 

Scenario 2 - Increase the number of minor injury/urgent care/out of hours services to three, retain all 

other services. 

Affordable Sustainable Safe Convenience of access for patients Overall rating 

No No Yes Yes Non-viable 

 

Scenario 3 - Standard primary care services during the day, no minor injury units, GP out of hours service 

in two locations. 

Affordable Sustainable Safe Convenience of access for patients Overall rating 

No No No No Non-viable 



Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group 

20 Working together for excellent health for the local communities 

 

 

 
 
 

To support you to understand the following 

options a key is shown below 
 

 
Key 

 
 

• A minor injury unit is a department that treats non-serious injuries as an 

alternative to attending an Accident and Emergency department. 
 

• Out-of-hours is from 6pm-8am on weekdays and all day at weekends 

and on Bank Holidays. All services operate from 6pm at night on 

weekdays. The outcome of a contact with the out-of-hours service 

may be: 
 

– Patient receives a home visit 
 

– Patient is invited to attend the out-of-hours service for a 

face-to-face consultation 
 

– Patient receives advice by telephone 
 

– No action required or follow up with own GP at a later date 
 

• Extended services means that GP Practices or a group of practices (hub) 

would offer additional appointments beyond 6pm on weekdays and 

additional weekend opening 
 

• Enhanced services would entail GP Practices seeing more patients during 

the day that require same day urgent access 
 

• A hub arrangement is a group of practices working together from one 

site to serve a larger population 



Getting Care Right For You 

21 

 

 

 
 
 

These are the scenarios that were taken 

forward as options for consultation 
 

 

Option 1: 
 
 

• retain two Minor Injuries Units (MIUs) for 12 hours per day, 8am-8pm 

these are currently based at Peterlee Urgent Care Centre and Bishop 

Auckland Urgent Care Centre 
 

• retain the number of out-of-hours services, currently these are based at 

Peterlee Urgent Care Centre and Bishop Auckland Urgent Care Centre 
 

• extended GP opening times in hub arrangements. These would be new 

hubs and provide up to three in each locality area, opening Monday to 

Friday 6pm-8pm and 8am-1pm Saturday and Sunday 
 

• existing GP services to manage demand for minor ailments during the 

day (instead of urgent care centres) in every practice 
 

• encouraging use of NHS 111 triage to co-ordinate access to appropriate 

care, first time 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Minor 
Injury 
Units 

 

8am-8pm 

GP 
Out-of-
hours 
service 

 
Mon-Fri 

8pm-8am 
Sat-Sun 

24/7 

 

Existing GP 
services 

 

 
Mon-Fri 

8am-6pm 

 

Extended 
GP opening 
times (Hub) 

 
Mon-Fri 

6pm-8pm 
Sat-Sun 

8am-1pm 



Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group 

22 Working together for excellent health for the local communities 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Option 2: 
 
 

• retain two Minor Injuries Units (MIUs) for 12 hours per day, 8am-8pm 

these are currently based at Peterlee Urgent Care Centre and Bishop 

Auckland Urgent Care Centre 
 

• retain the number of out-of-hours services, currently these are based at 

Peterlee Urgent Care Centre and Bishop Auckland Urgent Care Centre 
 

• extended GP opening times in hub arrangements. These would be new 

hubs and provide up to three in each locality area, opening Monday to 

Friday 6pm-8pm and 8am-1pm Saturday and Sunday 
 

• enhanced GP services to manage demand for minor ailments during the 

day and same day urgent requests (instead of urgent care centres) either 

in every GP practice or in hubs 
 

• encouraging use of NHS 111 triage to co-ordinate access to appropriate 

care, first time 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Minor 
Injury 
Units 

 
8am-8pm 

GP 
Out-of-hours 
service 

 
Mon-Fri 

8pm-8am 
Sat-Sun 

24/7 

 

Existing GP 
services 

 
 

Mon-Fri 

8am-6pm 

 

Extended 
GP opening 
times (Hub) 

 
Mon-Fri 

6pm-8pm 
Sat-Sun 

8am-1pm 

 

Enhanced 
GP services 

Treat minor 
ailments and same 
day urgent 
requests 

Mon-Fri 

8am-6pm 



Getting Care Right For You 

23 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Option 3: 
 
 

• retain two Minor Injuries Units (MIUs) for 24 hours per day, these are 

currently based at Peterlee Urgent Care Centre and Bishop Auckland 

Urgent Care Centre 
 

• retain out-of-hours services, currently these are based at Peterlee Urgent 

Care Centre and Bishop Auckland Urgent Care Centre 
 

• extended GP opening times in hub arrangements. These would be new 

hubs and provide up to three in each locality area, opening Monday to 

Friday 6pm-8pm and 8am-1pm Saturday and Sunday 
 

• enhanced GP services to manage demand for minor ailments during the 

day and same day urgent requests (instead of urgent care centres) either 

in every GP practice or in hubs 
 

• encouraging use of NHS 111 triage to co-ordinate access to appropriate 

care, first time 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Minor 
Injury 
Units 

 
24/7 

GP 
Out-of-hours 
service 

 
Mon-Fri 

8pm-8am 
Sat-Sun 

24/7 

 

Existing GP 
services 

 
 

Mon-Fri 

8am-6pm 

 

Extended 
GP opening 
times (Hub) 

 
Mon-Fri 

6pm-8pm 
Sat-Sun 

8am-1pm 

 

Enhanced 
GP services 

Treat minor 
ailments and same 
day urgent 
requests 

Mon-Fri 

8am-6pm 



Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group 

24 Working together for excellent health for the local communities 

 

 

 
 
 

6. How you can have 

your say 
 

 
We are keen to hear your views, experiences and ideas about how we can 

improve urgent care services across DDES. There are lots of ways to get 

involved. To make sure your voice is heard, you can share your views in the 

following   ways: 
 

Complete the online survey: www.gettingcarerightforyou.org.uk 

A paper version is also available by calling: 0191 371 3222 

Email us: ddesccg.enquiries@nhs.net 

Twitter: @ddesccg 
 

Write to us: Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield CCG, Sedgefield 

Community Hospital, Salters Lane, Sedgefield TS21 3EE 
 

Public Consultation events 
You are strongly advised to book for these events in advance. In the event that 

the venue capacity is reached, for health and safety reasons we may need to 

turn you away if you have not pre-booked. We will try to accommodate you 

wherever possible but cannot guarantee this without a booking. To register at 

one of these events go to www.gettingcarerightforyou.org.uk 
 

 

Locality 
 

Day 
 

Date 
 

Time of Event 
 

Location 

 

Durham Dales 
 

Friday 
 

22/04/2016 
 

09:30-11:30 
 

Bishop Auckland Rugby Club 

 

Durham Dales 
 

Saturday 
 

30/04/2016 
 

10:00-12:00 
 

GlaxoSmithKline,  Barnard 

Castle 

 

Durham Dales 
 

Wednesday 
 

04/05/2016 
 

17:30-19:30 
 

Wolsingham School Sports 

Hall 

 

Easington 
 

Wednesday 
 

27/04/2016 
 

18:00-20:00 
 

Seaham Golf Club 

 

Easington 
 

Saturday 
 

16/04/2016 
 

10:00-12:00 
 

Peterlee Leisure Centre 

 

Easington 
 

Thursday 
 

12/05/2016 
 

14:00-16:00 
 

Easington Social Welfare 

Centre 

 

Sedgefield 
 

Saturday 
 

09/04/2016 
 

10:00-12:00 
 

Newton Aycliffe Leisure 

Centre 

 

Sedgefield 
 

Thursday 
 

28/04/2016 
 

10:00-12:00 
 

Spennymoor Leisure Centre 

 

Sedgefield 
 

Wednesday 
 

11/05/2016 
 

18:00-20:00 
 

Sedgefield Racecourse 

http://www.gettingcarerightforyou.org.uk/
mailto:ddesccg.enquiries@nhs.net
http://www.gettingcarerightforyou.org.uk/


Getting Care Right For You 

25 

 

 

 
 
 

7. How we will use 

your feedback 
 

 
We know it is really important to keep you updated, especially when you 

have taken the time to share your thoughts and views with us. At the end 

of the consultation, an independent organisation will write a report. The 

CCG Governing Body will look at the report and use the information and 

recommendations to decide how best to improve urgent care services 

across DDES. 
 

We will publish this report on our website. We will also share it through our 

Community Newsletter, Facebook and Twitter profiles and the online 

platform MyNHS. 



Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group 

26 Working together for excellent health for the local communities 

 

 

 
 
 

8. Frequently Asked 

Questions 
 

 
 

Extended hours GP centres 
 

What does extended hours GP centres mean? 
 

It’s a group of GP practices working together that offers evening and 

weekend appointments for patients registered with other practices in 

the area. 
 

Will I be able to see my own GP if I have an appointment at an 

extended hours GP centre? 
 

In an extended hours GP centre you may not be able to see a doctor from 

your own practice but he/she will have full access to your medical notes 
 

Will the appointments in the extended hours GP centres just be for 

urgent conditions? 
 

No, although urgent needs will be prioritised. The new extended hours GP 

centres will offer more convenient routine appointments for people too. 
 

Minor Injuries Units 
 

What are minor injuries? 
 

• bruises, strains and sprains 
 

• minor burns, cuts and wounds 
 

• skin complaints, rashes, bites and stings 
 

• small eye injuries 
 

• wound infections 
 

• minor head injuries 
 

• injuries to the back, shoulder and chest 
 

• minor wounds to hands, limbs and feet. 



Getting Care Right For You 

27 

 

 

 
 
 

Do I need to make an appointment to go to one of the minor injuries 

units or can I just turn up? 
 

NHS 111 would be able to book you an appointment which could potentially 

avoid a longer waiting time. Also, NHS 111 will ensure that a minor injury 

unit is the most appropriate place for you to go. We will consider in the 

consultation whether walk-in access is appropriate. 
 

What will happen if my injury turns out to be more complex than first 

thought? 
 

The staff in the minor injuries unit will also do their best to treat you, calling 

upon all the expertise within the unit. If your injury is something the minor 

injury unit cannot deal with, you will be transferred/diverted to a specialist 

doctor or to A&E. 
 

Will the minor injury unit have an x-ray department? 
 

Yes. 
 

NHS 111 
 

Does this mean that every time I want to make an appointment with 

my GP, I have to ring NHS 111 first? 
 

No, you do not have to. You should ring your GP first and if they cannot 

accommodate your urgent care need the practice will arrange an 

appointment for you in one of the extended hours GP centres. 
 

Will I be given a choice of where I can attend for a GP appointment if 

my own surgery is not available – for example if I need to go to one 

of the extended hours GP centres? 
 

Yes, where possible you will be offered a choice of GP practice and time. 

However, during busy times it may be that choice will be limited. 
 

Will a doctor or nurse answer my call when I ring NHS 111? 
 

Not initially. Your call will be answered by an experienced call handler 

who will ask you a series of questions. After this assessment, you may be 

transferred to a doctor, nurse or other health professional who will ask you 

further questions and make recommendations on what you need to do next. 
 

Will NHS 111 direct me to a GP appointment every time? 
 

Not necessarily. You may just be given advice which meets your need or 

directed to another more appropriate service, e.g. a pharmacist, a falls 

service, a district nursing service, a minor injury unit or A&E. 



Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group 

28 Working together for excellent health for the local communities 

 

 

 
 
 

Will NHS 111 be able to book an appointment for me to see a GP directly 

if I need one or will I then have to make another call myself to make an 

appointment? 
 

NHS 111 already have some day time access to appointments in your GP surgery 

but this will be increased. 
 

Does NHS 111 have access to my medical record? 
 

NHS 111 will have access to a summary of your medical record. 
 

Out of Hours 
 

What should I do if I feel ill during the night and want to see a doctor? 
 

You should contact NHS 111 who will advise you of the best treatment or course 

of action. 



Getting Care Right For You 

29 

 

 

 
 
 

9. Potential location 

of GP hubs 
 

 
It is recognised nationally that we do not have the GP workforce or potential 

demand to offer 7 day GP extended hours in every practice. It is therefore 

recommended that GP practices work together to deliver these services to 

populations of at least 30,000 or more although this can be determined locally. 
 

• Currently DDES does not have any fixed GP hub arrangements as such. 

However, we do run a GP weekend opening service on a Saturday morning 

from a number of locations which are based around larger populations, in the 

heart of the communities and the highest users of current services, some of 

which operate in a hub arrangement. Easington Locality : Seaham, Easington, 

Peterlee. Sedgefield Locality : Newton Aycliffe. Durham Dales : Barnard Castle, 

Weardale, Bishop Auckland 
 

• There is a potential for up to 9 GP hubs within the financial plan 
 

• All existing premises will be considered first for GP hubs 
 

The following map shows the location of current services and where the temporary 

hubs are based now. In order to identify where we should locate the extended 

hours GP hubs for each of our options, we have divided a map of DDES into areas 

according to geography and GP population sizes as can be seen below. 
 

 

WIC = Walk In Centres 

MIU = Minor Injury Unit 

UCC = Urgent Care Centre 

= Temporary Hub Arrangement 

 
Seaham Primary 
Care Centre 

UCC 

 
Easington Healthworks 

WIC 

 

MIU/UCC 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Area 1 (Durham Dales) 

– has approximately 

91,600 people registered 

with a GP 

MIU/UCC 
 

 
Area 2 (Easington) 

– has approximately 

101,900 people 

registered with a GP 
 

 
 

Area 3 (Sedgefield) – has 

approximately 96,200 people 

registered with a GP 



Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group 

30 Working together for excellent health for the local communities 

 

 

 
 
 

Now we would like your views on our proposals. 
 

We want you to know the key differences between each of the options. 
 

Minor Injury 

Units 
Urgent Care  Out-of-hours services   Existing GP services 

GP practices open 

 
Option 

1 

MI units available 

12 hours per day 

(instead of 24 

hours per day) 
 

 
Minor Injury 

 
No Urgent 

Care Centre 

in hours 

OOH services (out of 

hours urgent care) 

remain local 

8pm-8am weekdays 

and 24/7 weekends 

longer, 8am-8pm 

weekdays and 8am- 

1pm Saturday and 

Sunday (or provided in 

a hub arrangement) 

Units 
Urgent Care  Out-of-hours services   Existing GP services   Enhanced GP services 

 

 
Option 

2 

 
MI units available 

12 hours per day 

(instead of 24 

hours per day) 
 

 
Minor Injury 

 
 

No Urgent 

Care Centre 

in hours 

 

OOH services (out of 

hours urgent care) 

remain local 

8pm-8am weekdays 

and 24/7 weekends 

GP practices open 

longer, 8am-8pm 

weekdays and 8am- 

1pm Saturday and 

Sunday (or provided in 

a hub arrangement) 

Option 1 PLUS 

Enhanced GP Service 

- Urgent care provided 

from your GP practice  

or in a hub arrangement 

8am–8pm 

Units 
Urgent Care  Out-of-hours services   Existing GP services   Enhanced GP services 

 

 
Option 

3 

 
Option 1 + 2 

PLUS MI units 

available 

24 hours per day 

 
 

No Urgent 

Care Centre 

in hours 

 

OOH services (out of 

hours urgent care) 

remain local 

8pm-8am weekdays 

and 24/7 weekends 

GP practices open 

longer, 8am-8pm 

weekdays and 8am- 

1pm Saturday and 

Sunday (or provided in 

a hub arrangement) 

Option 1 PLUS 

Enhanced GP Service 

- Urgent care provided 

from your GP practice  

or in a hub arrangement 

8am–8pm 
 
 
 
 

Location of extended GP 

opening hubs 
 

Murton 

Sth Hetton 

 

 
Thornley Horden 

Blackhall 

Wingate 

 
 
 
 
 

Butterknowle 

Ferryhill 

Chilton 

Shildon 

 
 
 
 

Gainford 
 

 
To help you select the locations of extended 

GP hubs, the map above lists the towns 

and major villages. 



Getting Care Right For You 

31 

 

 

 
 
 

10. Public consultation questionnaire 
 

Please read the accompanying consultation information before completing the questions below. Please send the 

completed questionnaire (no stamp required) to: Getting Care Right For You – DDES Urgent Care Consultation, 

FREEPOST, RRXK-CZGR-TJJA, Unit G, Lumley Close, Thirsk YO7 3TD by Monday 6 June 2016. 
 

Options for Change 
 

1. We want to know what you think about each option 

to help us shape how the new services will look in the 

future. Can you please tell us what option you support? 

 
Option 1: 

• Retain two Minor Injuries Units (MIUs) for 12 hours 

per day, 8am-8pm these are currently based at 

Peterlee Urgent Care Centre and Bishop Auckland 

Urgent Care Centre. 

• Retain the number of out-of-hours services, currently 

these are based at Peterlee Urgent Care Centre and 

Bishop Auckland Urgent Care Centre. 

• Extended GP opening times in hub arrangements. 

These would be new hubs and provide up to three in 

each locality area, opening Monday to Friday 6pm- 

8pm and 8am-1pm Saturday and Sunday. 

• Existing GP services to manage demand for minor 

ailments during the day (instead of urgent care 

centres) in every practice. 
 

I support this I do support this BUT 
 
 
 

 
I do not support this Please say why 

 
 
 
 

Don’t know/no opinion 

 
Option 2: 

• Retain two Minor Injuries Units (MIUs) for 12 hours 

per day, 8am-8pm these are currently based at 

Peterlee Urgent Care Centre and Bishop Auckland 

Urgent Care Centre. 
 

• Retain the number of out-of-hours services, currently 

these are based at Peterlee Urgent Care Centre and 

Bishop Auckland Urgent Care Centre. 
 

• Extended GP opening times in hub arrangements. 

These would be new hubs and provide up to three in 

each locality area, opening Monday to Friday 6pm- 

8pm and 8am-1pm Saturday and Sunday. 

 

• Enhanced GP services to manage demand for minor 

ailments during the day and same day urgent requests 

(instead of urgent care centres) either in every GP 

practice or in hubs. 
 

I support this I do support this BUT 
 
 
 
 

I do not support this Please say why 
 
 
 
 

Don’t know/no opinion 

 
Option 3: 

• Retain two Minor Injuries Units (MIUs) for 24 hours 

per day, these are currently based at Peterlee Urgent 

Care Centre and Bishop Auckland Urgent Care 

Centre. 

• Retain out-of-hours services, currently these are based 

at Peterlee Urgent Care Centre and Bishop Auckland 

Urgent Care Centre. 

• Extended GP opening times in hub arrangements. 

These would be new hubs and provide up to three in 

each locality area, opening Monday to Friday 6pm- 

8pm and 8am-1pm Saturday and Sunday. 

• Enhanced GP services to manage demand for minor 

ailments during the day and same day urgent requests 

(instead of urgent care centres) either in every GP 

practice or in hubs. 
 

I support this I do support this BUT 
 
 
 
 

I do not support this Please say why 
 
 
 
 

Don’t know/no opinion 



Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group 

32 Working together for excellent health for the local communities 

 

 

 

2. We have asked you to support one option. However, 

considering all three options again, please state which 

option you would prefer. 

Most important to you - Option  

Second most important to you - Option 

Least important to you - Option 

3. What is it about the option you have chosen that is 

important to you? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4. In each locality, there are up to three proposed hubs. 

Please give us your recommendations of where each of 

the Extended GP Hubs should be located based on where 

you live. Please circle which locality you live in and list the 

three potential towns. See map on page 30. 

Durham Dales Easington Sedgefield 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Feedback 

 

5. Do you have any other feedback about our proposals 

for urgent care services? 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. Where have you heard about this consultation? 

 
Local radio Local television  Local newspaper 

Email Twitter/Facebook Word of mouth 

Roadshow Consultation website 

Leaflet to home Leaflet in public venue 
 

7. Overall, how do you feel about the way you have been 

consulted and the level of information that you have been 

given? 

About you 

The CCG has a duty to ask for data monitoring 

information, so we can meet our equality duties. 

You do not have to answer all the questions if you 

do not want to. 
 

8. Please state your gender. 
 

Male Female Prefer not to say 
 

9. Please state your age. 
 

10. What is your marital status? 
 

Married Single Divorced Widowed 

Separated  Civil Partnership Other 

11. Please state which ethnic group you consider yourself 

to be. 
 

 
12. Please tell us your religion or belief. 

 

 
Prefer not to say 

 

13. Do you consider yourself to have a long standing 

illness or disability? 
 

Yes No 
 

14. How would you describe your sexuality? 
 

Heterosexual or Straight Gay or Lesbian 

Bisexual Other Prefer not to say 

15. Please tell us if you are pregnant or have a child under 

two years old. 
 

Yes No Prefer not to say 
 

16. Have you undergone gender reassignment? 
 

Yes No Prefer not to say 
 

17. Please tell us the first 4 or 5 characters of your post 

code (please note this does not identify a street or house) 

e.g. such as DH6 2 or DL13 5. 
 

         

Please do not include the last two characters. 
 

18. Once the consultation is finished, we will widely 

publicise the results – what more information do you think 

people need to help them access urgent care services? 

 

Very satisfied Quite satisfied 

Quite dissatisfied  Very dissatisfied 



Getting Care Right For You 

33 

 

 

 
 
 

11. Do you need more help? 
 

 
 

We can provide versions of this document in other languages and formats such as Braille and large 

print on request. Please contact us on 0191 371 3222. 
 
 
 

Albanian 
 

 
 
 
 

Arabic 

 
 
 

Farsi 

PLACEHOLDER - AWAITING TRANSLATIONS 

 

 
 

Slovak 
 

 
 
 

Tigrynia 
 

 



Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group 

34 Working together for excellent health for the local communities 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Notes 



Getting Care Right For You 

35 

 

 

 
 
 

Notes 



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Please visit our website for more information about the DDES CCG: 

www.durhamdaleseasingtonsedgefieldccg.nhs.uk 
 
For more information about getting involved please visit our website and click on ‘Get Involved’ 

 

 

Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield CCG 

Sedgefield Community Hospital 

Salters Lane 

Sedgefield TS21 3EE 

 
Tel: 0191 371 3222 

Email:  ddesccg.enquiries@nhs.net 

http://www.durhamdaleseasingtonsedgefieldccg.nhs.uk/
mailto:ddesccg.enquiries@nhs.net


Who are we?

We are NHS Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield 
Clinical Commissioning Group (DDES CCG) – an 
organisation made up of GPs, nurses and other health 
professionals, covering a population of around 289,670 
patients. We are responsible for planning and buying 
health services on your behalf. As a group, we work on 
behalf of our 40 GP practices and are accountable to 
you, the taxpayer.

Getting Care Right For You 
Consultation

‘Getting Care Right for You’, is a public consultation 
about urgent care services in Durham Dales, Easington 
and Sedgefield. The consultation is an opportunity for 
you to have your say about potential changes to the 
way we deliver urgent care services.

When we say ‘urgent care’ we mean the range of 
health services available to people who need  
urgent advice, diagnosis and treatment quickly  
and unexpectedly for needs that are not considered  
life threatening.  

Examples of urgent care services are:

• NHS 111 telephone service

• Pharmacy services

• Walk in centres

• Urgent care centres 

• Minor injury units.

The aim of the proposed changes is to 
commission (buy) simple, urgent care services. 
In particular, we want to provide you with 
prompt treatment or advice for your urgent 
care needs ensuring that we make best use of 
medical services and workforce and that we 
don’t add unnecessary pressure on Accident & 
Emergency (A&E).

For the purposes of this consultation, we are 
seeking your views on the following services:

• Day time urgent care (8am–8pm)

• Minor injury services (for example sprains  
and strains)

These are currently provided from:

• Easington Healthworks

• Seaham Primary Care Centre

• Peterlee Urgent Care Centre

• Bishop Auckland Urgent Care Centre

What you have already told us

We began a review of urgent care services in 2014. 
From January 2014 to December 2015 we asked local 
people about their experience of using services and 
for their views on how they could be improved. In 
summary, people told us that the current system is 
confusing and needs to be much simpler. This feedback 
has helped us to develop a range of options for the 
future. 

Public consultation 
We want to hear your views, 
experiences and ideas on the future 
of urgent care services in Durham 
Dales, Easington and Sedgefield.

14th March 2016 – 6th June 2016

Extended 
GP opening 
times (Hub)

NHS 111 Pharmacy Minor 
injuries 
units

Urgent 
care 
centres

Walk-in 
centres

Local GPs

Getting Care 
Right For You

HAVE 
YOUR S

AY

Please
 co

mplete
 th

is 
paper  

questi
onnaire

 or g
o onlin

e at 

www.getti
ngca

re
rig

htfo
ry

ou.org
.uk

stephen.gwillym_1
Text Box
APPENDIX 4



Working together for excellent health for the local communities

 

Our consultation will focus on options 
that will retain services locally.
If you are poorly during the day, we are proposing that 
you will be treated by your GP practice or a group of 
GP practices working together (a hub) instead of the 
current daytime urgent care.

If you have a minor injury, we are proposing that 
services should remain as they are now, but we want 
you to advise us on opening hours.

GP services outside of normal surgery opening times 
will remain unchanged. 

We are also proposing some new developments to 
complement future urgent care arrangements such as:

• Extended GP services 6pm-8pm weekdays and 
Saturday and Sunday from 8am-1pm

• Enhanced GP services providing additional 
availability of same  day urgent appointments

• Practices working together from one location  
to serve larger populations. These will be known  
as hubs 

• Encouraging the use of NHS 111 to assess  
health needs and co-ordinate patient access to 
appropriate care

To support you to understand the following options, a key is shown below 

• A minor injury unit is a department that treats 
non-serious injuries as an alternative to attending an 
Accident and Emergency department

• Out-of-hours is from 6pm-8am on weekdays  
and all day at weekends and on Bank Holidays.

• Extended services means that GP Practices or 
a group of practices (hub) would offer additional 
appointments beyond 6pm on weekdays and 
additional weekend opening

• Enhanced services would entail GP Practices seeing 
more patients during the day that require same day 
urgent access

• A hub arrangement is a group of practices working 
together from one site to serve a larger population 

How you can get involved
We are keen to hear your views, experiences and ideas about how we can improve urgent care services across 
Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield, and would like to invite you to attend one of our events:

Durham Dales  Friday 22 April 9.30am - 11.30am Bishop Auckland Rugby Club 
 Saturday 30 April  10am - 12noon  GlaxoSmithKline, Barnard Castle 
 Wednesday 4 May  5.30pm - 7.30pm  Wolsingham School Sports Hall

Easington Wednesday 27 April  6pm - 8pm   Seaham Golf Club 
 Saturday 16 April  10am - 12noon  Peterlee Leisure Centre 
 Thursday 12 May  2pm - 4pm  Easington Social Welfare Centre

Sedgefield Saturday 9 April  10am - 12noon  Newton Aycliffe Leisure Centre 
 Thursday 28 April  10am - 12noon  Spennymoor Leisure Centre 
 Wednesday 11 May  6pm - 8pm  Sedgefield Racecourse

To register at one of these events, go to www.gettingcarerightforyou.org.uk or call 0191 371 3222. Please let 
us know if you have any special requirements. If you are unable to come along to an event, but would like to have 
your say, please complete the following survey. This survey is also available online at  
www.gettingcarerightforyou.org.uk 

This leaflet summarises the key points of the consultation. A full consultation document is available at  
www.gettingcarerightforyou.org.uk or to request a paper copy you can:

Telephone: 0191 371 3222  Email: ddesccg.enquiries@nhs.net  
You can also write to us at:  
Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield CCG, Sedgefield Community Hospital, Salters Lane, Sedgefield TS21 3EE



  3

Gainford

Butterknowle
Shildon

Chilton

Horden
Blackhall

Wingate

Murton

Thornley

Sth Hetton

Ferryhill

We would like your views on the following options

Option 1:

• retain two Minor Injuries Units 
(MIUs) for 12 hours per day, 
8am-8pm these are currently 
based at Peterlee Urgent Care 
Centre and Bishop Auckland 
Urgent Care Centre

• retain out-of-hours services, 
currently these are based at 
Peterlee Urgent Care Centre 
and Bishop Auckland Urgent 
Care Centre

• extended GP opening times 
in hub arrangements. These 
would be new hubs and provide 
up to three in each locality area, 
opening Monday to Friday 6pm-
8pm and 8am-1pm Saturday 
and Sunday

• existing GP services to  
manage demand for minor 
ailments during the day  
(instead of urgent care centres) 
in every practice

• encouraging use of NHS 111 
triage to co-ordinate access to 
appropriate care, first time

Option 2:

• retain two Minor Injuries Units 
(MIUs) for 12 hours per day, 
8am-8pm these are currently 
based at Peterlee Urgent Care 
Centre and Bishop Auckland 
Urgent Care Centre

• retain out-of-hours services, 
currently these are based at 
Peterlee Urgent Care Centre 
and Bishop Auckland Urgent 
Care Centre

• extended GP opening times 
in hub arrangements. These 
would be new hubs and provide 
up to three in each locality area, 
opening Monday to Friday 6pm-
8pm and 8am-1pm Saturday 
and Sunday

• enhanced GP services to 
manage demand for minor 
ailments during the day and 
same day urgent requests 
(instead of urgent care centres) 
either in every GP practice or 
in hubs

• encouraging use of NHS 111 
triage to co-ordinate access to 
appropriate care, first time

Option 3:

• retain two Minor Injuries Units 
(MIUs) for 24 hours per day, 
these are currently based at 
Peterlee Urgent Care Centre 
and Bishop Auckland Urgent 
Care Centre

• retain out-of-hours services, 
currently these are based at 
Peterlee Urgent Care Centre 
and Bishop Auckland Urgent 
Care Centre

• extended GP opening times 
in hub arrangements. These 
would be new hubs and provide 
up to three in each locality area, 
opening Monday to Friday 6pm-
8pm and 8am-1pm Saturday 
and Sunday

• enhanced GP services to 
manage demand for minor 
ailments during the day and 
same day urgent requests 
(instead of urgent care centres) 
either in every GP practice or 
in hubs

• encouraging use of NHS 111 
triage to co-ordinate access to 
appropriate care, first time

For question 4 on the survey, you will be 
asked where you think the potential hubs 
should be located in your locality.  
To help you select the locations  
of extended GP hubs,  
this map lists the  
towns and  
major villages.



Public consultation questionnaire
Please send the completed questionnaire (no stamp required) to: Getting Care Right For You – DDES Urgent Care 
Consultation, FREEPOST, RRXK-CZGR-TJJA, Unit G, Lumley Close, Thirsk YO7 3TD by Monday 6 June 2016. 

Options for Change
1. We want to know what you think about each option to help us  
    shape how the new services will look in the future. Can you please  
    tell us which option you support?

Option 1:  I support this  I do support this BUT Please say why 

 I do not support this Please say why  Don’t know/no opinion

Option 2:   I support this  I do support this BUT Please say why 

 I do not support this Please say why  Don’t know/no opinion

Option 3:  I support this  I do support this BUT Please say why 

 I do not support this Please say why  Don’t know/no opinion

2. We have asked you to support one option. However, considering all  
    three options again, please state which option you would prefer. 

Most important to you -             Option   

Second most important to you - Option   

Least important to you -             Option   

3. What is it about the option you have chosen that is important to you?

4. In each locality, there are up to three proposed hubs. Please give us  
    your recommendations of where each of the Extended GP Hubs  
    should be. Please circle which locality you live in and list the three  
    potential towns. See map on nprevious page.

Durham Dales                    Easington                     Sedgefield

Feedback

5. Do you have any other feedback about our proposals for urgent  
    care services?

6. Where have you heard about this consultation?

 Local radio  Local television  Local newspaper 

 Email  Twitter/Facebook  Word of mouth

 Roadshow  Consultation website 

 Leaflet to home  Leaflet in public venue

7. Overall, how do you feel about the way you have been consulted  
    and the level of information that you have been given?

 Very satisfied  Quite satisfied

 Quite dissatisfied  Very dissatisfied

About you

The CCG has a duty to ask for data monitoring information, so 
we can meet our equality duties. You do not have to answer all 
the questions if you do not want to. 

8. Please state your gender.

 Male  Female  Prefer not to say 

9. Please state your age. 

10. What is your marital status?

 Married  Single  Divorced  Widowed

 Separated  Civil Partnership  Other 

11. Please state which ethnic group you consider yourself to be.

12. Please tell us your religion or belief. 

   Prefer not to say 

13. Do you consider yourself to have a long standing illness  
      or disability?

 Yes  No

14. How would you describe your sexuality?

 Heterosexual or Straight  Gay or Lesbian

 Bisexual  Other  Prefer not to say

15. Please tell us if you are pregnant or have a child under two  
      years old.

 Yes  No  Prefer not to say 

16. Have you undergone gender reassignment? 

 Yes  No  Prefer not to say 

17. Please tell us the first 4 or 5 characters of your post code  
      (please note this does not identify a street or house) e.g. such as  
      DH6 2 or DL13 5.

     

 18. Once the consultation is finished, we will widely publicise the  
       results – what more information do you think people need to help  
       them access urgent care services?   

Please do not include the last 
two characters.

We can provide versions of this document in other languages and formats such as Braille and large print on request. 
Please contact us on 0191 371 3222.


	Agenda
	5 Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield Clinical Commissioning Group - Review of Urgent Care Services  - Joint Report of the Assistant Chief Executive, Durham County Council and the Chief Clinical Officer, Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield CCG
	Cllr Robinson  - DDES Review of Urgent Care Services Consultation and Engagement proposals Letter
	Full consultation document
	DDES UCC Flyer FINAL




